
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 
 

 

Date: WEDNESDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2023 at 7.00 pm 

 
 
Enquiries to:    Hajera Khan 
Email: Committee@lewisham.gov.uk  
 
MEMBERS 
 

 

Councillor Suzannah Clarke   
Councillor Billy Harding   
Councillor Eva Kestner   
Councillor James Rathbone   

Councillor Luke Sorba   
Councillor Hau-Yu Tam   
Andrew Jones 
Mark McLoughlin 
Marcus O’Toole 
 
 

  

   

 
Members are summoned to attend this meeting 

 
Jeremy Chambers 
 

 
Monitoring Officer 
Lewisham Town Hall  
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Date: 24 October 2023 

 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:Committee@lewisham.gov.uk


 

 
 

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1.   Minutes 
 

1 - 4 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

5 - 8 

3.   2022/23 External Audit Update 
 

9 - 78 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday, 13 September 2023 at 7.00 pm 

 
 
 
Members PRESENT: 

In Person: Councillor Eva Kestner (Chair), Councillor Billy Harding, Councillor 

James Rathbone, Councillor Luke Sorba, Councillor Hau-Yu Tam, Councillor 

Suzannah Clarke 

 

Independent Members Present:  

In Person: Andrew Jones, Mark McLoughlin, Marcus O’Toole  

 

Officers Present: 

In Person: Rich Clarke (Head of Assurance), David Austin (Acting Executive 

Director of Corporate Resources), Katharine Nidd (Acting Director of Finance), 

Hajera Khan (Committee Officer).  

 

Present Remotely:  Paul J Jacklin (Grant Thornton), Terence Madgett (Acting 

Chief Accountant)  

 

Apologies: Independent Member Stephen Warren  
 

1. Minutes 

 

An amendment made to state Audit and Risk Committee instead of Pension 

Board.  

 

The Head of Assurance updated the Committee on the action from the 

previous Committee meeting. He stated that one school canteen has been 

affected by the Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete (RAAC).  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Risk 

Investment Committee held 22nd June 2023 be resolved. 

 

 
2. Declaration of Interest 

 
None  
 
 
 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



 

 
 
 

2 

3. External Audit Update 
 

The Committee received an update introduced by the Acting Chief 
Accountant on the External Audit completed by Grant Thornton. The Chief 
Accountant noted the progress of the audit of 2022/2023 and that the 
2020/21 and 2021/22 accounts had now been signed off.  
 
The Committee also noted progress reported by the representatives from 
Grant Thornton the Council’s external auditors as follows: 
 

 The Council has received the audit certificate for 2020/21. 

 They are awaiting the audit certificate for 2021/22 but given that that 

accounts have been signed off Lewisham is progressing well 

compared to the rest of the country as there has been national 

delays.  

 The 2022/2023 Audit has some delay as there has been shortage on 

staff, but it is on track.  

 The representative from Grant Thornton stated that the new auditors 

KPMG who are starting next year have not contacted them yet for 

handover papers or files, but they are prioritising finishing the 

handover for the end of November.  

3.1 In response to a question, the Executive Director of Corporate Resources 
gave further detail into Section 114 notices and the process of tendering 
new audits.  
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 

 
4. A-FACT Annual Report 

 

The Head of Assurance presented a review of the Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Team’s (A-FACT) work in the last financial year:  
 

 The year 2022/23 represented something of a return to ‘normal’ for fraud 

referrals. After nearly three years where a significant proportion of the 

team’s work focussed on fraud compliance with Covid support grants.  

 The reduction in Covid-related workload has also meant a resumption of 

more preventative and governance work, including fraud awareness 

training and a revised counter fraud policy.  

 There has been an increase in cases but there is no strong evidence 

that this represents an increase in the underlying level or vulnerability to 

fraud and the team will be recruiting an apprentice to support with 

capacity.  

 When asked about Benefit fraud, the Head of Assurance stated that it is 

the Department of Work and Pensions who investigate these crimes.  

ACTION:  
The Head of Assurance to provide a report with case study information on the 

investigative work that the Assurance team conduct. 
 

RESOLVED that the report be noted. 

Page 2



 

 
 
 

3 

 
 

5. Internal Audit Charter and Quarterly Update 
 

5.  Internal Audit Charter and Quarterly Update 
 

The Head of Assurance presented to Members giving an overview of the 
Internal Audit Charter and Quarterly Update.  
 

 The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document translating the 
principles and objectives of the Public Internal Audit Standards into 
local application. This change would be for the Committee’s new 
name to be noted as the Audit and Risk Committee instead of the 
Audit Panel.  

 In October Lewisham Homes will be fully re-integrated to the 
Council. The recommendation is TIAA who are currently contracted 
to support the Lewisham Homes audit for 2024/25 to continue to be 
used to support the delivery of internal audit coverage for the former 
Lewisham Homes areas of responsibility. TIAA have agreed we can 
redeploy the audit time to Council audits without incurring additional 
cost. 

 For Internal Audit Engagements 2022/23, there are nine high priority 
actions that are outstanding. Most of the audit actions have been 
completed as well as the IT Asset Management action from the 
previous Committee meeting.  

 
Members asked questions on actions that have been noted as not satisfied, 
the Head of Assurance clarified that incomplete actions will be monitored 
regularly and will be included on the risk register if it is escalated; all actions 
are due by the end of December.  
 
The Committee were asked to:  
 

 Approve the Internal Audit Charter. 

 Note the Internal Audit Progress Update. 

 Approve plans for delivery of part of the 23/24 audit plan. 
 

RESOLVED that the report be noted, and the recommendations approved.  
 

6. Risk Register - Quarterly Update Q1 2023/24 
 

6.  Corporate Risk Register Update Q1 2023/24 
 
The Committee received an update report presented by the Head of Assurance 
in relation to the corporate risk register.  

 The report updates the Council’s Corporate Risks, there are the same 

risks as the Corporate Risk Register for the quarter ending 30 June 

2023  

Page 3



 

 
 
 

4 

 Bringing in Lewisham Homes is a risk and there are two additional risks 

coming from Lewisham Homes, these will be fully incorporated into the 

next committee report.  

 There is currently work being done to build out the software with 

information, reflecting greater capacity to identify, organise and track 

details related to risks, controls, and actions. 

Members asked if they could go over the lessons learned from the Oracle 
system failure, the Executive Director of Corporate Resources stated it can 
be bought in December as an item once the audit is complete in November, 
as this will provide further assurance of the Council’s handling and 
response to the matter.  

 

RESOLVED that the Corporate Risk Register be noted. 
 
The meeting ended at 20:41.  
 

Page 4



 

 

Audit and Risk Committee 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. Members must declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. There 
are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member Code of 
Conduct: 

(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 

(2)  Other registerable interests 

(3)  Non-registerable interests. 

1.2. Further information on these is provided in the body of this report. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 

Declarations of Interest 

Date: 1 November 2023 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: The Director of Finance and the Chief Accountant  

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



  

3. Disclosable pecuniary interests  

3.1 These are defined by regulation as: 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or gain 

(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than by the 
Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the register in 
respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member or towards 
your election expenses (including payment or financial benefit  from a Trade 
Union). 

(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they are a 
partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, services or works. 

(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 

(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 

(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of which 
they have a beneficial interest.   

(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land in the 
borough; and  

(b)  either: 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person* 
has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued share capital of 
that class. 

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person 
with whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

4. Other registerable interests 

4.1 The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the following 
interests: 

(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you were 
appointed or nominated by the Council 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or 
policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25. 

Page 6



  

5. Non registerable interests 

5.1. Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely to 
affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more than it 
would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is not required 
to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning 
the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

6. Declaration and impact of interest on members’ participation 

6.1. Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are present at a 
meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must declare the nature of the 
interest at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered. The 
declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and 
withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest which has not 
already been entered in the Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where 
such an interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of 
up to £5000  
 

6.2. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest they must still declare the nature of the interest to the meeting at the earliest 
opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the 
room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph 6.3 
below applies. 

6.3. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, the member must consider whether a reasonable member of the public in 
possession of the facts would think that their interest is so significant that it would be 
likely to impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to influence the 
outcome improperly. 

6.4. If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a member, their, 
family, friend or close associate more than it would affect those in the local area 
generally, then the provisions relating to the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply 
as if it were a registerable interest.   

6.5. Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s personal judgement, 
though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

7. Sensitive information  

7.1. There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not be 
registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and advised to seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

8.  Exempt categories 

8.1. There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in decisions 
notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. These include:- 

(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter relates 
to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent or 

Page 7



  

guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless the matter 
relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which you are a 
governor 

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 

(d)   Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  

(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 

(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception). 

Page 8



 
 

Audit & Risk Committee 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  

External Audit Update 

Date: 01 November 2023 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Terence Madgett, Chief Accountant 

Outline and recommendations 

The purpose of this report is to: 

- Provide an update to the members of the committee on the progress of the 2022/23 
audit of the accounts. 

- Provide an update on the 2021/22 Audit Findings Report recommendations. 
- Note Grant Thornton’s 2022/23 Audit Findings Reports. 

The committee are recommended to  

- Note the contents of the report. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



1. Summary 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the members of the Audit Panel 
on the 2022/23 audit of the accounts.  
The report also provides members with the management action responses to the 
auditor recommendations made as part of the 2021/22 external audit.  
Finally, the report includes the 2022/23 Audit Findings Reports (AFRs) for the Council 
and Pension Fund audits, produced by Grant Thornton.  

2. Recommendations 
The Audit & Risk Committee are recommended to note the contents of the report. 

3. Policy Context 
The report is consistent with the Council’s policy framework, supporting the priorities 
set out in the Corporate Strategy 2022-26. It contributes towards all Council priorities 
through effective management of finance.  

4. Background 
The draft 2022/23 Statement of Accounts were published on the Council’s website at 
the beginning of July and the External Audit began shortly after. 
The audit is scheduled to take place between July and November 2023, with the 
publication of the final auditted accounts by 30 November 2023. 

5. 2022/23 Audit of Accounts Update 
Grant Thornton have substantially completed the audit of the financial statements, with 
neartly all of the sampling work having been completed, subject to the resolution of 
some outstanding queries. 
There have so far been six misstatements identified during the audit process that the 
Council has agreed to amend, these include 1 post year-end event, 2 related to 
Pension assets valuation, 1 asset valuation of social housing, 1 cut-off testing of 
income and 1 relating the employee leave accrual. These are detailed in Appendix D 
to in the draft 2022/23 Council Audit Findings Report. 
There are numerous missclassifiaction and disclosure amendments that the Council 
has agreed to make, these are also in Appendix D to in the draft 2022/23 Council Audit 
Findings Report. 
There are 2 potential misstatements that the Council will not be amending. These are 
detailed at the end Appendix D to in the draft 2022/23 Council Audit Findings Report. 
The reason for not amending for these is that one is an extrapolation of a small error 
that was identified and one is a potential misstatement (not an actual error found). 
Officers are still confident that the 30 November date for publication will be achieved. 

6. 2021/22 Audit Findings Report Annual Report 
Recommendations 
The Audit Findings Report for London Borough of Lewisham and Lewisham Pension 
Fund for the year ended 31 March 2022, included an action plan. This consisted of a 
number of recommendations for the Council as a result of issues identified during the 
course of the 2021/22 audit. 
Progress on these recommendations is included within Appendix A to this report and 

Page 10



Appendix C to in the 2022/23 Council Audit Findings Report. 
The Auditor’s Annual Report (VFM) for the year ended 31 March 2022, includes an 
action plan. This consisted of a number of recommendations for the Council following 
their review of the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. The report also included a follow up of prior year recommendations. 
Progress on these recommendations is included within Appendices B and C. 

7. 2022/23 Audit Findings Reports 
Grant Thornton, the external auditors for London Borough of Lewisham Council and 
Pension Fund will present the 2022/23 Audit Findings reports for the Council and 
Pension Fund Audits. 
The Council’s report is included within Appendix D and the Pension fund report will be 
given as a verbal update at the meeting (the report will be available after the meeting). 

8. Financial implications 
There are none arising direct from this report. 

9. Legal implications 
There are none arising direct from this report.  

10. Equalities implications 
There are none arising direct from this report. 

11. Climate change and environmental implications 
There are none arising direct from this report. 

12. Crime and disorder implications 
There are none arising direct from this report.  

13. Health and wellbeing implications  
There are none arising direct from this report. 

14. Background papers 
All relevant background papers are included as appendices or hyperlinks within. 

15. Report author(s) and contact 
Terence Madgett, Financial Accountant, 020 8314 7650, 
terence.madgett@lewisham.gov.uk  

16. Appendices 
Appendix A: Update on Management Responses to Audit Findings Report 2021/22 
Action Plan Recommendations. 
Appendix B: Update on Management Responses to Auditor’s Annual Report (VfM) 
Recommendations 2021/22 
Appendix C: Update on Management Responses to Auditor’s Annual Report (VfM) 
Recommendations 2020/21 
Appendix D: Audit Findings Report 2022/23 for London Borough of Lewisham. 
 

Page 11



Appendix A 
Management Update on The Audit Findings for the London Borough of Lewisham and Lewisham Pension Fund – Year ended 31 
March 2022 Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements – Council  
 
Year  Assessment  Issue and Risk  Recommendations  Responsibility / 

Timescale  
Management Action  

2021/22  Medium  Whilst preparing the financial 
statements officers identified that 
the balance on the Consolidated 
Income and Expenditure Statement 
did not equal the difference in 
reserves between 31 March 2021 
and 31 March 2022. A correction 
journal of £2,286k was performed 
to ensure that the accounts 
balanced.  

The Council should 
investigate how this 
initial imbalance 
arose.  

Core Accounting 
– Final Accounts  
June-23 when 
reconciliation 
undertaken  

Management will reinforce the rules for 
use of balance sheet codes to the 
services to reduce the chance of future 
imbalances occurring.  
A full and detailed reconciliation 
between the net deficit/ surplus in the 
CIES and the movement in net asset 
value in the Balance Sheet will be 
carried out again in 2022/23 to identify 
and correct any miscoding that creates 
any imbalances.  
Further Management update 
Further investigation was carried out 
but the detail of what caused the 
imbalance has not been identified. 
When the same reconciliation was 
carried out in 2022/23 a similar 
imbalance occurred. Management will 
look to bring in further restrictions over 
who can journal to what to balance 
sheet codes in 2023/24. 

2021/22  Medium  Our testing identified 2 errors (total 
value £749k) in our testing where 
payments were made for capital 
expenditure for works completed in 
2021/22 but had not been accrued 
for. The extrapolated error is 
£2,170k  

Your cut off 
procedures need 
strengthening to 
ensure that 
expenditure is coded 
in the year in which it 
relates.  

Core Accounting 
– Capital  
June-23 when 
cut-off testing 
undertaken  

Improvements have been made in cut-
off training and testing.  
A training session will be held 
specifically for Capital Project 
Managers to share best practise 
requirements and impact.  
This should improve the completeness 
of capital accruals made for 2022/23.  

P
age 12



Year  Assessment  Issue and Risk  Recommendations  Responsibility / 
Timescale  

Management Action  

Further Management update 
There were no errors found that relate 
to capital expenditure accruals in 
2022/23 which would indicate that 
improvements have been made in 
ensuring capital expenditure is coded to 
the correct year. 

2021/22  Medium  The Council has identified 132 
assets that have a nil net book 
value. The Council were unable to 
locate these assets. The assets are 
fully depreciated and are years old 
and have now been written out of 
the asset register.  

The Council should 
implement processes 
to ensure all assets 
are appropriately 
tracked to ensure they 
can be located.  

Core Accounting 
– Final Accounts  
Complete – 
process 
amended  

Assets are now being tracked and 
generic assets (particularly 
infrastructure) are no longer added to 
Fixed Asset Register. 
Further Management update 
No further update required – 
Recommendation has been fully 
implemented. 

2021/22  Medium  The Adult Social Care ContrOCC 
system is not being updated and 
monitored regularly to ensure the 
commitments stated on the system 
are complete and accurate. The 
finance team rely on the reports 
from the ContrOCC system to 
determine outstanding 
commitments to be raised as 
creditors at year-end.  

The Council should 
ensure the ContrOCC 
system is regularly 
updated.  

Service Finance 
– Communities  
Ongoing work in 
progress – 
review latest 
balances for P2 
– June 23  

There will always be an element of non-
delivery on care such as Homecare as 
people go into hospital, decline, or do 
not require the service.  
Two key workstreams are being 
undertaken to improve the accuracy of 
commitments within the ContrOCC 
system:  
- A monthly reconciliation is to be 
created which will compare payments 
made on the Oracle system to the 
ContrOCC commitment report, this will 
highlight potential commitments that 
should not be within ContrOCC as 
payments are not being made.  
- Invoices on hold are also reviewed on 
an ongoing weekly basis to make sure 
commitments in the system are 

P
age 13



Year  Assessment  Issue and Risk  Recommendations  Responsibility / 
Timescale  

Management Action  

accurate to enable invoices to be 
processed without intervention.  
 
Both will help improve the accuracy of 
outstanding commitments and the year-
end creditor.  
Further Management update 
A monthly reconciliation is now 
undertaken which compares payments 
made on the Oracle system to the 
ContrOCC commitment report. Invoices 
on hold are also reviewed on an 
ongoing weekly basis to make sure 
commitments in the system are 
accurate to enable invoices to be 
processed without intervention. 

2021/22  Medium  The Council has significant credit 
balances on Council Tax and 
NNDR accounts due to residents 
and businesses. These balances 
have remained outstanding for 
several years  

The Council need to 
take action to repay 
these creditors. In the 
instance where the 
residents or 
businesses cannot be 
traced and the legal 
time limits have 
expired, the Council 
should write back 
these amounts.  

Resident and 
Business 
Services  
Ongoing work in 
progress – 
review latest 
balances in 
May-23  

Action will take place during Summer to 
proactively contact customers where 
details are held to refund these sums. 
Where contact is not made, the 
amounts will be written off. Should 
customers contact Lewisham at any 
time, we will write back the credit and 
raise a refund  
All write off balances will be reported to 
the Director of Finance for review and 
approval.  
Project due to commence in June-23  
Further Management update 
The review has recently been 
completed for Business Rates accounts 
and £2m has been written back. The 

P
age 14



Year  Assessment  Issue and Risk  Recommendations  Responsibility / 
Timescale  

Management Action  

review of Council Tax accounts will be 
beginning shortly. 

2021/22  Medium  Schools bank accounts were not all 
reconciled as at 31 March 2022. 
Some were reconciled at an earlier 
date.  

All school bank 
accounts should be 
reconciled as at 31 
March.  

Service Finance 
– Children’s  
April-23  
Complete  

All schools bank accounts will be 
reconciled as at 31st March, which is 
included within the Schools and 
Corporate Closing timetable and 
training. This date does not clash with 
the schools Easter Holiday.  
All 75 schools banks accounts have 
been reconciled as at 31st March, and 
their financial returns have been 
transferred to Oracle as at 31st May 
2023.  
Further Management update 
No further update required – 
Recommendation has been fully 
implemented. 

2021/22  Medium  Management had challenges 
demonstrating the Pension Fund 
statements reconciled directly to 
the ledger.  

The Fund should 
continue to work with 
the custodian to 
improve coding so the 
accounts are 
prepared directly from 
the trial balance.  

Treasury & 
Investments  
May-23 when 
transactions 
reconciled  
Complete  

Management intends to improve the 
ledger coding structure to help 
demonstrate the reconciliation to the 
accounts. The Council continue to run 
all the pension fund account 
transactions through its ledger. The 
custodian will still provide the detailed 
breakdown of the investments, and 
these will be summarised on the trial 
balance and will reconcile to the 
accounts.  
Further Management update 
No further update required 

P
age 15



Year  Assessment  Issue and Risk  Recommendations  Responsibility / 
Timescale  

Management Action  

2021/22  Low  Within our testing of operating 
expenditure on repairs and 
maintenance charges on Council 
dwellings we identified that there is 
no formal documentation between 
the Council and Lewisham Homes 
to confirm the nightly call out 
capped charge rates.  

Implement a formal 
agreement setting out 
nightly capped call out 
charges for repairs 
and maintenance jobs 
undertaken by 
Lewisham Homes.  

Lewisham 
Homes  
April-23 when 
agreement 
finalised  

Discussions have been had between 
LH and LBL and no evidence can be 
found about the flat rate agreement for 
callout. Lewisham Homes proposes 
that callouts are paid under the same 
terms as their contractor supply-chain – 
which is callout including cost of actual 
work completed.  
A formal agreement will be put in place.  
Further Management update 
This recommendation has been 
superseded by the staff and functions 
of Lewisham Homes now being part of 
the Council. 

2021/22  Low  The Exacom system used to record 
and track the Section 106 
agreements is not fully reconciled 
to the general ledger. The overall 
difference between the Exacom 
listing and the General Ledger 
Balance in £2.7m.  

The Council need to 
complete their work 
on reconciling the 
Exacom system with 
the ledger.  

CIL Team  
Ongoing work in 
progress – 
review May-23 
to confirm latest 
variance  

The comprehensive review to reconcile 
Exacom to the General Ledger is 
ongoing and an audit of projects from 
2010 to date is also being undertaken. 
The reconciliation process and the 
recording of payments on the General 
Ledger/Exacom is also under ongoing 
review.  
These actions will continue for 22/23 
and 23/24 to provide additional 
accuracy.  
Further Management update 
No further update required 

2021/22  Low  The 31 March Altair report to 
support membership details had 
not been retained. Officers were 
not able to run a subsequent report 
that detailed figures at 31 March 
2022.  

The Fund should 
retain the 31 March 
Membership numbers 
report.  

Treasury & 
Investments  
May-23 when 
reports run & 
reviewed for 
accuracy  

Membership numbers as at 31 March 
could not be obtained as new starters 
had not been set up within Altair. A 
significant amount of work is required to 
upload the data which caused delays in 
processing.  

P
age 16



Year  Assessment  Issue and Risk  Recommendations  Responsibility / 
Timescale  

Management Action  

Complete  The Pensions Team will run 
membership reports on 31 March going 
forward. Note this will exclude March 
data as employers have until 19th April 
to provide this.  
Altair is a live system, so membership 
data will vary on an ongoing basis.  
Further Management update 
The reports for 2022/23 were run as at 
31/03/23 and retained by the service. 
These were shared with GT during the 
audit. 

 

P
age 17



Appendix B 
 

Recommendation  Impact  Management Comment  By whom  Progress  
Financial Sustainability  
In the efforts to improve savings 
performance against target the 
Council should explore ways to:  

• Encourage focused 
discussion by the PASC on 
specifically under delivering 
savings schemes in 
2022/23.  

• Undertake public 
consultation on the savings 
programme.  

• Learn from successful 
delivered schemes via post 
implementation reviews.  

• Savings under-delivery 
historically has been 
attributed to the 
Communities ASC team 
and therefore finance 
officers should work directly 
with that team, in a 
targeted and collaborative 
manner, to focus on 
specific savings that can be 
generated from high unit 
cost services within this 
directorate that are not 
currently being addressed.  

• Focus on identifying 
recurring savings which 
can impact each of the four 
years of the MTFS.  

Due to the track record of under-
delivery of savings in recent years 
and expected under delivery in 
2022/23 close and more frequent 
attention may be required to the 
progress of savings schemes in 
year so that action can be taken in 
a timely manner to respond to any 
under-delivering schemes.  
To maximise the success and 
achievability the Council could 
benefit from additional scrutiny and 
input to identifying savings in the 
initial savings of budget setting.  
Performing post-implementation 
reviews of savings after they have 
been achieved is a way the Council 
could ensure lessons are learned 
and opportunities to make further 
savings are maximised.  
Although ASC is a demand led 
service with high costs being a 
product of increasing numbers of 
service users, specific services with 
Social Care where unit costs are 
also high could exacerbate the 
overspends observed in this 
service.  
Ensure that savings identified cover 
the full MTFS term maximises 
potential savings across the 
medium term and reduces the 
pressure to identify additional 
savings each year by focussing on 

This recommendation is taken in the spirit 
of continuous improvement and 
management action will focus on 
consideration of doing more of the steps 
already in place. For example:  

• PASC will continue to carefully 
review the financial budget setting 
and monitoring reports with 
particular attention to progress 
with delivering savings.  

• As we do each year, we will 
continue to consult internally and 
with the Cabinet Member for 
Resources and Strategy on the 
best approach to engagement 
around Budget proposals, 
building on the current process of 
discussing and inviting all 
Members to contribute to 
including the option to run a larger 
public consultation on the savings 
proposed.  

• The Finance Business Partnering 
approach will continue to be 
developed with learning from 
recent successfully delivery 
service changes (captured as part 
of service plan reporting by each 
Director) and improved with the 
business intelligence and support 
using data insights and 
performance benchmarking to 
effectively target risk and 
opportunity.  

Executive 
Director for 
Corporate 
Resources  

The March PASC meeting is focusing 
on CSC – a significant overspending 
and high cost service.  
 
The detailed savings and Budget for 
23/24 were submitted for pre-scrutiny 
in public meetings in December and 
January before being moved for 
decision.  
 
Progress with delivery of savings is 
included in the monthly monitoring to 
EMT and quarterly to Members. This 
includes key performance data for 
cost drivers. The narrative on 
exceptions in the monitor is also 
changing to include an assessment 
of risk and planned actions.  
 
Service planning for 23/24, which 
took place in March and April, 
included relevant benchmarks and 
performance indicators to track 
planned actions.  
 
The updated MTFS presented to 
Members in July had a four year 
view, despite the limited certainty 
with one year government funding 
and delayed reforms.  

P
age 18



Recommendation  Impact  Management Comment  By whom  Progress  
identifying those which are 
recurring.  

• Within the constraint of local 
government only receiving one 
year settlements at present, 
officers will continue to work on 
the potential for more 
transformational multi-year 
savings options learning from the 
work done in the larger social 
care services in recent years.  

1. The Council should develop a 
Workforce Plan or Strategy 
covering all aspects of the future 
workforce required for the Council 
to fulfil its priorities and that the 
Council align this framework to the 
existing 2022/23 budget, future 
budgets and MTFS to ensure they 
are complementary. This will 
ensure that the future 
establishment is affordable and 
Council priorities are met within 
budget constraints.  
  
 

Ensuring the Budget, MTFS and 
Workforce Plan are complementary 
of one another will ensure that the 
future establishment is affordable 
and Council priorities are met within 
budget constraints.  
 

In the context of local authority a single 
plan or strategy would not be appropriate, 
given the varied nature of services and 
the skills required. However, we can 
identify any common themes identified 
and build these  
into the overarching People and OD 
strategy which sets out our vision for our 
people and identifies the areas we need 
to focus on to achieve our ambitions.  
Detailed workforce planning takes part in 
the annual service planning process 
supported by finance, HR and 
transformation business partners. The 
Councils service planning framework 
encapsulates the areas identified within 
the audit. We can also seek to strengthen 
the guidance for managers on service 
planning as well as the working 

Director of HR 
and OD  

The Service Planning template has 
been updated and the guidance for 
managers has been strengthened.  
Strategic HR Business Partners 
meeting with service directors to 
support this aspect of their planning 
using workforce metrics and aligned 
to budgetary position/savings targets.  
 

P
age 19



Recommendation  Impact  Management Comment  By whom  Progress  
relationships between the relevant 
business partners to ensure that these 
three areas are appropriately aligned.  
Principles in relation to structural design 
e.g. spans of control and hierarchy fall 
outside of service planning, and are 
covered within the Council’s management 
of change (restructure) policy.  

2. Overall the Council’s 
arrangements to secure financial 
sustainability are appropriate, the 
Council may wish to explore ways 
that it can make iterative 
improvements to demonstrate best 
practice financial arrangements. 
These could include developing 
actions that could be taken, at a 
high level, to respond should the 
‘worst case’ scenario included in 
the MTFS occur and 
communicating this to Members. 
This will ensure that the Council 
can respond in a timely manner 
should any aspects of that scenario 
materialise.  
 

The Council made a small deficit in 
2021/22 and the 2022/23 financial 
landscape is forecast to be 
challenging for the Council and 
Local Government as a result of 
Covid 19 challenges not matched 
by additional funding, rising 
inflation, pay increases and the cost 
of living crisis which could all 
potentially negatively impact the 
year-end financial position. As such 
it is important that the Council has 
robust arrangements in place to 
monitor finances closely and 
respond to issues as they emerge.  
 

Officers bring the experience of having 
been consistently involved in making 
budget reductions each year since 2010 
(gross £230m to date; including £92m 
reinvested to reshape service delivery and 
meet demand), working closely with 
partners in the Borough and across 
London, and effectively managing the 
Council’s financial security and stability, 
including the use of reserves.  
Officers will continue to develop this 
experience to inform the assessment of 
the financial risk landscape and update 
the risk mitigations for these risks 
quarterly as part of the corporate risk 
management strategy. The risk register is 
reviewed by the Executive Management 
Team and PASC quarterly which will 
provide the opportunity for actions to be 

Executive 
Director for 
Corporate 
Resources  
 

Risk register reviewed by the 
Assurance Board in February and 
tabled for the Audit Panel in March 
2023.  
 
New Head of Emergency planning 
recruited in February and continued 
rehearsal and self- assessment 
against the agreed London wide 
resilience forum standards 
undertaken annually.  
 
The MTFS in July forecast that no 
new savings would be required in 
2024/25 if the 2023/24 budget 
remained stable. A revised MTFS will 
be tabled to PASC in November to 
consider both the current 23/24 

P
age 20



Recommendation  Impact  Management Comment  By whom  Progress  
agreed as necessary and scrutinised to 
ensure lessons and improvements are 
acted on.  

forecast outturn and the Chancellor’s 
Autumn Statement in October.  

3. The Council should continually 
review its risk management 
procedures to ensure they remain 
effective and fit for purpose. This 
could include:  

• Ensuring that there is a 
greater level of oversight of 
the strategic risks 
impacting the Council by 
M&C.  

• Updating the format of the 
strategic risk register. 

• Working collaboratively 
with Internal Audit to 
ensure that the 2022/23 
audit plan is achievable 
within the time and 
resource available. 

The strategic risk register is a key 
mechanism for managing risk to the 
achievement of the Council’s 
strategic objectives and therefore it 
is important that there is a clear link 
between those objectives and the 
risks being faced.  
To ensure that the risks within the 
register, supporting actions and 
scoring remain appropriate it is 
important it undergoes regular 
scrutiny at the top tier of the 
organisation and is included in 
M&C meeting papers for 
transparency to the entire 
organisation.  
The internal audit plan is key in 
ensuring an appropriate number 
and coverage of assurance reviews 

The refreshed risk management strategy 
was approved by EMT in November 2022 
and will be rolled out in the new year. It 
includes biannual reporting to the Mayor & 
Cabinet of the highest risks.  
Following the publication of the new 
Corporate Strategy in November 2022 we 
will refresh the risk register content in 
2023 to link to objectives and align with 
formats in the new Risk Management 
Strategy.  
Members approved the 2022/23 Internal 
Audit plan in March 2022 which includes a 
resource analysis and flexible options on 
delivery to support the achievement of 
sufficient breadth and quality of coverage 
to deliver a robust audit opinion for 
2022/23.  

Head of 
Assurance  
 

Implementation of risk management 
strategy (including rollout of 
supporting software) to take place 
across 2023/24 in parallel to service 
planning. The new Risk Management 
software was presented to the ARIC 
in September and is being rolled out 
across the Council with regular 
review and engagement with EMT. 
 

P
age 21



Recommendation  Impact  Management Comment  By whom  Progress  
• Tracking progress against 

the Quality Improvement 
Plan developed by Internal 
Audit.  

 

are undertaken in year to be able to 
provide an effective opinion on the 
strength of the Council’s controls. 
The Audit Panel plays a key role in 
holding Internal Audit to account for 
their performance.  

4. Overall the Council’s governance 
arrangements are strong and 
operating consistently in line with 
Council policies. The Council may 
wish to explore ways that it can 
make iterative improvements to 
demonstrate best practice 
governance arrangements. These 
could include:  

• Updating financial 
monitoring reports to 
include details of actions 
being taken on 
overspending services 
throughout the year. 

• Ensuring that presentation 
of financial performance to 
M&C is sufficiently regular. 

Strong governance is the backbone 
of any organisation and ensuring 
arrangements are as robust as 
possible maximises the Council’s 
ability to make well informed 
decisions.  
 

The Council welcomes the assurance that 
its governance arrangements continue to 
be strong and operate in line with policies. 
Recognising the challenge to continuously 
improve incremental changes will 
continue to be made. For example:  

• The financial monitoring reports 
which now flag the variances for 
key services with detail on service 
financial performance supported 
with activity details will be 
reviewed to include more clarity 
on next steps being taken. 

• The Council will continue to report 
on the financial position at least 
quarterly and keep open the 
option to report by exception to 
M&C outside of this cycle if 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Director of 
Finance  
 
 
 
Director of 
Finance 
 
 
 

The monitoring position has been to 
M&C as follows:  
•15th June 22 – Outturn 21/22  
•6th July 22 – Monitoring Period 2  
•5th October 22 – Monitoring Period 
4  
•11th January 23 – Monitoring Period 
7  
References within the report to 
actions being taken to manage 
demand pressures such as Social 
Care.  
The reporting in 23/24 continues to 
provide detail on both the areas of 
overspend, the reasons for this and 
the actions being taken by services 
to reduce and manage this. 
 
 

P
age 22



Recommendation  Impact  Management Comment  By whom  Progress  
 

• Undertaking effectiveness 
reviews of their committees 
to ensure that they are 
performing effectively 
against their terms of 
reference. 
 

 
 
 
 

• Incorporating assessments 
of financial performance 
into the appraisals of 
budget holders. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Investigating ways of 
increasing feedback 
response to consultations 
exercises. 

• Ensuring that Members are 
sighted in the lessons 
learned from the Financial 
Software IT Critical 
Incident.  

 
 

necessary, as was done through 
the Covid pandemic.  

• The Audit Panel, by the nature of 
the internal audit standards, is 
under a specific expectation to 
review its performance and report 
on this annually. The second 
phase of the Constitution review 
being led by the Monitoring 
Officer will consider whether a 
similar approach might be 
appropriate for the Council’s other 
Committees.  

• The staff appraisal forms currently 
have fields for identifying what is 
being done well and what could 
be improved based around key 
objectives. The guidance will be 
reviewed to assess the benefit of 
being more specific on financial 
management, to supplement the 
detailed expectations set out in 
the financial regulations and 
procedures.  
 

• Feedback on the Budget and 
monitoring of the risk registers is 
part of the quarterly PASC work 
schedule but, as set out else 
where we will continue to look to 
enhance the focus and value of 
these discussions to generate 
improvement and delivery more 
value.  

 

 
Monitoring 
Officer  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Director of HR 
and OD  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Director for 
Corporate 
Resources   

 
The first phase of the Review of the 
Constitution was considered by the 
Constitution Working Party (CWP), 
unanimously agreed by Council in 
November and is now in effect.  
Phase II of the Review has now 
commenced. Roundtable sessions 
have been arranged for information 
sharing and discussion.  
 
 
The 2023/24 appraisal cycle included  
fields to capture the following specific 
areas:  
people management, finance & 
equalities (where applicable). The 
appraisal guidance and training will 
be updated to make clear 
expectations.  
 
 
 
 
The risk register considered at PASC 
records the actions taken and 
mitigations implemented. The next 
financial year audit will review how 
the incident was handled and 
considered in the Annual 
Governance Statement as part of the 
financial statements.  
The Monitoring Officer is leading on 
the second phase of the 
constitutional review which will 
include the financial regulations, 
procedures and schemes of 
delegation. Following the return of 

P
age 23



Recommendation  Impact  Management Comment  By whom  Progress  
Lewisham Homes into the Council 
the officer schemes of delegation 
were updated and published to 
ensure that the Council’s structures 
were properly reflected. 

5. The Council should explore ways 
to ensure the maximum benefit is 
achieved from the non-financial 
reporting of the Council’s 
directorates. This could be 
achieved via increased oversight of 
the non-financial KPI performance 
of the Council’s services and 
directorates by Members and 
introducing benchmarking into all 
directorate KPI reports. The Council 
would benefit from a Council wide 
benchmarking strategy as opposed 
to an ad-hoc approach.  
 
 

Paying equal attention to financial 
and non-financial performance 
assists Members in making 
informed decisions since, in most 
cases, non-financial 
underperformance directly  
impacts the Council’s financial 
position.  
Comparing performance to similar 
organisations provides important 
information to assess if certain 
services are outliers in terms of 
their financial and non-financial 
performance, thereby identifying 
potential opportunities for 
improvement. This information is of 
maximum benefit if applied 
consistently across the Council.  
 

The Council is reviewing its performance 
reporting to support the new Corporate 
Strategy adopted by Full Council in 
November 2022. This will develop 
relevant non-financial indicators to assess 
progress on delivery of the corporate 
objectives.  
As recognised, Finance and Service 
teams have been developing more data 
insights. This work will continue to ensure 
it is aligned for financial and non-financial 
data and include benchmarking where 
there is consistent and reliable data 
available.  
 

Executive 
Director for 
Corporate 
Resources  
 

The Chief Executive moved an 
internal reorganisation at Full Council 
in January 2023 to give focus to this 
challenge.  
The next step is a corporate report to 
be published by April which will then 
be further developed to reflect the 
more detailed two year service plan 
priorities as they are finalised in April 
/ May. 
The Council’s Corporate 
Performance Report was tabled to 
Members in September 2023 and 
included the publication of the new 
Corporate Performance dashboard 
on the Council’s website. 
 

P
age 24



Recommendation  Impact  Management Comment  By whom  Progress  
6. Overall the Council’s 
arrangements for securing 
economy, effectiveness and 
efficiency are positive. The Council 
may wish to explore ways that it 
can make iterative improvements to 
demonstrate best practice in these 
arrangements. These could include: 

• Developing can action plan 
form the findings of the 
LGA Peer Review to 
monitor success of the 
response to the 
recommendations with 
oversight from a relevant 
committee or M&C. There 
may be scope to 
incorporate the finding into 
existing KPI reporting as 
those structures are 
already in place.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Ensuring that a data policy 
is finalised as soon as 
possible.  

• Identifying how the existing 
governance arrangements 
can support delivery of the 
digital programme, once 

Paying equal attention to financial 
and non-financial performance 
assists Members in making 
informed decisions since, in most 
cases, non-financial 
underperformance directly impacts 
the Council’s financial position.  
Comparing performance to similar 
organisations provides important 
information to assess if certain 
services are outliers in terms of 
their financial and non-financial 
performance, thereby identifying 
potential opportunities for 
improvement. This information is of 
maximum benefit if applied 
consistently across the Council.  

The Council welcomes the assurance that 
its arrangements for securing economy, 
effectiveness and efficiency remain 
positive.  
 
The Council did develop an action plan in 
response to the LGA peer review. 
Progress against these actions is 
currently being updated and will be 
reported on to Members. This is being 
coordinated by the Cabinet Member for 
Resources and Strategy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Digital and data strategy and policy 
improvements – both for services to the 
Borough and internally for officers’ ways 
of working are being reviewed and 
improved, including the operation of the 
Council’s leading shared service with the 

 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Director for 
Corporate 
Resources  
 
 
 

•The Council’s action plan in 
response to its Corporate Peer 
Challenge has been published on our 
website  
•Each action within this plan has 
been allocated a Director or 
Executive Director to lead.  
•The Council has recorded progress 
against this action plan, and this has 
been shared with senior staff and 
Members internally, as well as with 
the LGA Peer Challenge Team.  
•The LGA Peer Challenge Team re-
visited Lewisham Council in January 
2023, for a review of the progress 
made against the action plan. In their 
final feedback to the Council they 
stated “that the Council continues to 
be reflective and open to feedback” 
and “the Council has taken the peer 
team’s recommendations from the 
full CPC seriously and made real 
progress in a number of areas.”  
•The final summary letter from the 
LGA Peer Challenge Team has been 
published on the Council website.  
•Progress against the action plan will 
continue to be monitored, and  
where appropriate, actions will be 
incorporated into service plans.  
  
The Council is currently working on a 
draft Data Policy that seeks to embed 
the principles of data accuracy, 
integrity and ownership across the 
Council; the principle aim being 
effective use of data to inform better 
decision making. At present, the Data 

P
age 25



Recommendation  Impact  Management Comment  By whom  Progress  
the 2023 Digital Strategy is 
developed and released.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Exploring ways that equal 
attention could be paid to 
monitoring the performance 
of both its key subsidiaries.  

London Boroughs of Brent and 
Southwark.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The reporting and monitoring of the 
Council’s subsidiaries, which includes the 
main one of Lewisham Homes, will be 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Director for 
Housing, 
Regeneration 

and Insights team have led a series 
of data workshops over the last 6/7 
weeks to feed into the development 
of the Data Strategy, working with 
analysts, directors across the 
different services across the Council.  
 
The Council has now created and 
produced a Corporate Performance 
dashboard for Quarter 3 of 23/24 that 
reports service delivery against 
targets for key statutory indicators 
aligned to our Corporate Plan.  
 
Regarding the governance 
arrangements for the Digital Strategy 
(when launched), delivery will be 
reported through the Strategic 
Change Board, chaired by the Chief 
Executive which monitors the 
delivery of key projects across the 
Council. The IT & Digital Team have 
already set up a Technical Design 
Authority (TDA) that reviews, 
assesses and critically challenges 
new IT & Digital projects across the 
Council to ensure the solution 
proposed is the best approach for the 
service and the requirements can’t 
be met by existing digital solutions in 
place. The TDA compromises of 
Shared Technology Service, leads 
from Applications, Digital and 
Information Governance  
The Council completed the 
insourcing of Lewisham Homes on 
the 1 October 2023, with some 

P
age 26



Recommendation  Impact  Management Comment  By whom  Progress  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

reassessed as part of the strategic 
decision currently before M&C on the 
options for the future of the company with 
the potential for it to be insourced.  
 

and Public 
Realm  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

functions brought back into the 
Council in February and May 2023.  
The Monitoring Officer will be 
undertaking a review of the Council’s 
governance arrangements for its 
subsidiaries in Q3 and Q4 of 23/24. 
The Council has also engaged with 
Government over preparation for the 
winding down of the PFI in 2027. 
 
 

 
 

P
age 27



Appendix G 
Auditor’s Annual Report (Value for Money) Recommendations for the London Borough of Lewisham – Year ended 31 March 2021 
 
 

 

Ref Category Issue and Risk Responsible 
Officer 

Management Action 

2 Financial 
Sustainability 

Budget Monitoring reports should clearly 
articulate the underlying causes for the 
under delivery of savings plans.  Actions 
taken to address under delivery or 
proposed alternative plans should also be 
detailed within the report. 

Director of 
Finance 

The budget monitoring process monitors the service’s financial position to date and forecasts this 
forward for the rest of the year in comparison to the budget. If the services are 
under/overspending against the budget this is reported as part of the monthly monitoring report 
which goes to EMT.  
Within this report there is a section focussed specifically on savings progress and where services 
are struggling to deliver savings; finance and the services work collaboratively to find ways to 
mitigate/deliver them in alternative ways. Any undeliverable savings which cannot be mitigated 
are included within the reported financial position for each service area with an explanation of 
what is causing them to not be delivered.  
A further section in the report covers financial risks which are not within the reported position but 
may materialise over the forthcoming financial year. 
Audit Response: Documentation of actions should be reported to Members 
Further Management Response:  The savings tracker goes to EMT monthly and Members at 
Periods 2, 4, 7 and 12. The budget address savings that cannot be delivered at all and need to be 
removed from the budget however the view is that the bulk can be delivered in 23/24. The Public 
Accounts Select committee have requested action plans to be shared and discussed at meetings 
during 22/23, which has in part led to a Member/Senior officer monthly meeting with regards to 
the Children’s Social Care position. 

5 Financial 
Sustainability 

Management have undertaken some 
sensitivity analysis when setting the 
2021/22 budget.  Management 
acknowledges that sensitivity analysis and 
scenario planning in terms of ‘worst case’ 
and ‘stress testing’ is an area which will 
need additional work going forward, to 
model the financial impact of Covid in the 
longer-term and ensure that plans are in 
place to make appropriate operational 
decisions to maintain financial stability.   

Director of 
Finance 

The current MTFP process included pessimistic and optimistic cases which effectively stress tested 
the likely four-year timeframe in considering the budgetary framework and what level of cuts 
might / would be required. 
This will continue throughout the year through joint working between budget monitoring, risks 
and pressures identification, considering the longer term impact of these for future year budgets 
and therefore adjusting / refining the savings / cuts targets. 
Audit Response: Recommendation extended to suggest Council to consider applying scenario 
planning to annual budget as well as MTFP 
Further Management Response: As part of (but separate to) the MTFP process, the Council will 
ensure that it undertakes scenario planning/testing for its current annual budget. This will include 
consideration of scenarios for: legislative changes, demand changes, inflation changes, policy 
changes. This will assist in the current year monitoring and forecasting and be used to inform the 
MTFP for possible changes to current year which need to be addressed permanently via the MTFP 
process. 

P
age 28



Appendix G 
Auditor’s Annual Report (Value for Money) Recommendations for the London Borough of Lewisham – Year ended 31 March 2021 
 
 

 

Ref Category Issue and Risk Responsible 
Officer 

Management Action 

8 Financial 
Sustainability 

Given the uncertainty of the pandemic and 
current economic environment a routine 
re-profiling of the capital programme 
would be required.  This needs to be 
complemented by detailed reporting on a 
scheme by scheme basis with detailed 
explanations explaining slippage that will 
assist with holding delivery managers to 
account for meeting project timescales. 

Director of 
Inclusive 
Regeneration 

Revised project highlight summary reporting will provide clearer detail of the performance of 
capital projects against time, cost, and quality. Slippage against profile will be reviewed on a 
quarterly basis by RCPDB. 
Audit Response: To be followed up in 2022/23 to ensure actions have been taken 
Further Management Response: A revised project highlight format has been devised and is 
reported against quarterly. Management information is drawn from these reports to assess risk 
to cost, quality and time across the programme. 
An in-year capital reprofile process has been implemented, allowing for updates to the capital 
programme profile twice yearly. 

12 Improving 
economy, 
efficiency, 
and 
effectiveness 

The Council should take a corporate 
approach to identify benchmarking good 
practice and co-ordinate its use within the 
services to challenge performance. 

Assistant 
Chief 
Executive 

As part of the Support for Leadership restructure, the role of the corporate Performance Team is 
to become more focused on strategic reporting, forward planning, benchmarking and good 
practice. The team is currently in transition towards moving to this model, working with service 
areas to take ownership over operational performance reporting so the corporate team can focus 
on strategic reporting and benchmarking. The team will work closely with the wider service areas 
and Strategic Transformation & OD Business Partners to support services in making use of 
performance and benchmarking information to identify and improve areas for change. 
Audit Response: Partially – see 2021/22 recommendations 

13 Improving 
economy, 
efficiency, 
and 
effectiveness 

For Lewisham Homes Limited and Catford 
Regeneration Partnerships Limited, a 
report on progress against action plans and 
mitigation strategies should be presented 
to Mayor and Cabinet on a more regular 
basis. 

Director of 
Housing and 
Director of 
Inclusive 
Regeneration 
respectively 

This will be actioned. 
 
Progress against the CRPL business plan to be reported to Mayor & Cabinet on an annual basis 
and regularly reviewed by Regeneration and Capital Board. 
Audit Response: Partially – see 2021/22 recommendations 

P
age 29



P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

P
age 34

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2023/about-time-local-authority-reports.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 35



Commercial in confidence

P
age 36



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 37



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 38



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 39



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 40



Commercial in confidence

P
age 41



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 42



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 43



Commercial in confidence

Net pension liability – 107m 
deficit.

•

•

•

•

•



















P
age 44



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 45



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•









P
age 46



Commercial in confidence

   

Assessment

  






P
age 47



Commercial in confidence

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 50



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

P
age 52



Commercial in confidence

P
age 53

https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 54



Commercial in confidence

P
age 55



Commercial in confidence

P
age 56



Commercial in confidence

Appendices





 

 



















P
age 57



Commercial in confidence







P
age 58



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

P
age 59



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

P
age 60



Commercial in confidence

P
age 61



Commercial in confidence

P
age 62



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

✓

P
age 66



Commercial in confidence

✓

•

•

•

✓

P
age 67



Commercial in confidence

P
age 68



Commercial in confidence

Detail

CIES

£‘000

Balance Sheet 

£’ 000 Reason for not adjusting

Our testing of Adult Social Care Creditors identified two items total value of £247k 

that were not valid creditors. The error extrapolated to £3,885k.

Cr Adult Social 

Care Expenditure

3,885

Dr creditors 

3,885

This is an extrapolated 

misstatement and is not 

material.

In revising the IAS19 work the actuary Hymans Robertson has adjusted the Salary 

increase rate from 3.90% to 4.20% and increase in 0.3% which will add 1.5% to the 

liability (0.5% for every 0.1% increase as per the original PWC report). The 

Lewisham net liability is £584,415k so this adds £8,766k to the liability. Our view is 

that the salary assumption should not have been amended so the liability is 

overstated.

Cr 

Remeasurement of 

the net defined 

benefit liability

8,776

Dr Liability related to defined 

benefit pension scheme

8,776

This is an estimate of potential 

misstatement. 

Total unadjusted misstatements including this Addendum on CIES. 12,661 12,661

P
age 69



Commercial in confidence

P
age 70



Commercial in confidence

P
age 71



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

P
age 72



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 73



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 74



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

.

⎯

⎯

•

•

•

•

P
age 75



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

o

o

o

•

•

P
age 76

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 77



P
age 78


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 2022/23 External Audit Update
	Audit & Risk Committee
	Outline and recommendations
	1. Summary
	2. Recommendations
	3. Policy Context
	4. Background
	5. 2022/23 Audit of Accounts Update
	6. 2021/22 Audit Findings Report Annual Report Recommendations
	7. 2022/23 Audit Findings Reports
	8. Financial implications
	9. Legal implications
	10. Equalities implications
	11. Climate change and environmental implications
	12. Crime and disorder implications
	13. Health and wellbeing implications
	14. Background papers
	15. Report author(s) and contact
	16. Appendices
	Audit and Risk Committee (01-11-23) - External Audit 2022-23 Update - Appendix A
	Audit and Risk Committee (01-11-23) - External Audit 2022-23 Update - Appendix B - VFM 21-22 Audit Update
	Audit and Risk Committee (01-11-23) - External Audit 2022-23 Update - Appendix C - VFM Recommendations 2020-21
	LB Lewisham draft Audit Findings Report 2022-23 to client - Appendix D
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings for London Borough of Lewisham 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: 1. Headlines
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 1. Headlines
	Slide 6: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 7: 2. Financial Statements
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements: Key findings arising from the group audit  
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 17: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 18: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 19: 2. Financial Statements: matters discussed with management
	Slide 20: 2. Financial Statements:  other communication requirements
	Slide 21: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 22: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 23: 3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM)  
	Slide 24: 4. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 25: 4. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 26: 4. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 27
	Slide 28: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 29: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 30: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 31: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations continued
	Slide 32: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 33: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 34: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 35: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 36: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 37: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 38: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 39: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 40: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 41: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 42: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 43: F. Auditing developments
	Slide 44: G. Audit opinion  
	Slide 45: G. Audit opinion  
	Slide 46: G. Audit opinion  
	Slide 47: G. Audit opinion  
	Slide 48: G. Audit opinion  
	Slide 49



